
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

8 October 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Regulatory Board
DATE: 16 October 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

PAUL GRANT
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Jones (ex-Officio) and Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Jessop (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs Hook (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Casey
Councillor Earle
Councillor Farr
Councillor Foster-Reed

Councillor Hammond
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Raffaelli
Councillor Scard
Councillor Westerby

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Regulatory Board
16 October 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 AUGUST 2019 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 14 October 2019. The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Monday, 14 October 2019).

6.  REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

Schedule of planning applications with recommendations.
(grey sheets pages 1-13/1)

7.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 

Which the Chairman determines should be considered, by reason of 
special circumstances, as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

1

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD
WAS HELD ON 28 AUGUST 2019

 

Councillors Bateman, Mrs Batty, Casey, Earle, Farr, Foster-Reed, Mrs Hook, Jessop, 
Miss Kelly, Raffaelli, Scard and Westerby

25. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

An apology for non attendance was received from Councillor Hammond

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The Senior Democratic Services Officer declared a personal interest grey sheet item no1. 
Land adjacent to 19 Burney Road and left the meeting. 

27. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 JULY 2019 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 23rd July be signed as a true and 
correct record. 

28. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

Deputations were received on the following agenda items 

19/00258/FULL – 19 Burney Road 
19/00159/FULL – 10 Elgar Close 

29. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

30. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

 The Head of Planning and Regeneration submitted a report on applications received for 
planning approval setting out the recommendation.

RESOLVED:  That a decision be taken on each application for planning permission as 
detailed below.

Agenda Item 3



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

2

19/00258/FULL - ERECTION OF DETACHED THREE BEDROOM DWELLING IN REAR 
GARDEN (as amended by plan received 22.7.19 and as amplified by email received 
22.7.19)
Land at 19 Burney Road, Gosport 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to application 19/00258/FULL.

Steph Shields was invited to address the Board. She advised that she lived at 17 Burney 
Road, directly next door to the application site and that she also was representing her 
neighbours.

She advised the Board that there were 40 or so properties that made up the quadrangle in 
the block and that given that a large number of objections had been made; this indicated 
the level of upset the proposed or any other dwelling would cause.

She advised that Board that the application site was bounded by mature trees and that 
currently were not protected by Tree Preservation Orders meaning that future owners or 
occupiers of the land could remove them, giving direct line of sight into properties, where 
they currently did not exist. 

The Board was advised that the trees provided shelter, privacy and security and contributed 
to the biodiversity of the area and that any removal of the trees and inclusion of electric 
lights would have an adverse effect on the wildlife present. 

She advised the Board that the Gosport SPD recognised that for new developments to 
integrate with its context it needed to take into account the grain that surrounded it and that 
the approach set out in the application was contrary to this and would be at odds not only 
with the 1920’s/30’s style of existing homes, but would also fail to respect the existing 
pattern whereby all properties face outwards onto the street affording the luxury of immense 
privacy and many hours of sunlight in large back gardens with no rear access. 

The Board was advised that the application also failed to respect guidance in Policy LP10 
which states the Council would resist the inappropriate development of residential gardens. 

She advised the Board that the plans submitted were not for a cottage as the applicant had 
led them to believe, but for a considerable 3 bedroom, 2 storey home, giving the implication 
that it would most likely be a family home. This would mean that any future occupants 
would then find it difficult to enjoy and make the most of living in a sought after area as 
there would be a lack of adequate outside space. 

The Board was advised that there had been a spate of burglaries within the area conducted 
via rear access to properties and outbuildings and that safe, secure environment had been 
created in the rear garden of theirs and neighbouring properties as they did not have rear 
access. This had been a main factor for many in purchasing property in this location. The 
Board was advised that the proposed or any other dwelling would pose a security risk and 
block natural sunlight. 

The Board was advised that residents worked hard to afford to live in the locality and that 
the priority of keeping children safe was of upmost importance and that it was felt that the 



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

3

ability to do so was being stripped by the proposed application, without the neighbouring 
residents being given a choice .

The Board was advised that although neighbouring gardens were not being reduced by the 
proposal they would become significantly less private due to the closeness in proximity that 
the proposed boundaries would be. In addition, there would be an increase in noise levels, 
disturbance and pollution from vehicles and any new homes would also exacerbate the 
already problematic parking issues. 

She advised the Board that at a time when negative reports of the area were present, the 
residents of Bay Road and Burney Road were lucky as they loved where they lived and had 
built a community on a safe environment and currently layout of properties and have peace 
of mind from the set up. 

She concluded by advising the Board that the development would be a permanent and 
irrecoverable loss of privacy and amenity for several residents to serve one home owner 
and set a damaging precedent meaning others could see pockets of land as potential 
income streams. 

Mrs Blackham was invited to address the Board. She advised that she respectfully 
acknowledged the concerns of neighbours and accepted that change could be disquieting. 

She advised that she believed the proposed dwelling was not inappropriate. 

With regard to an established pattern of residential development, Burney Road had two 
examples of dwelling constructed in the rear gardens of properties. Also she did not accept 
that the proposed design was incongruous or discordant, given that recent developments in 
Jellicoe Avenue and Rectory Close and the Conservation Area near the Crescent were all 
deemed to be examples of good, modern architectural practice at the same time as being in 
keeping with the established character of their areas. Therefore, in their opinion, and their 
architect’s opinion, decisions about design and appropriateness were always subjective in 
that some people would and would not like them and that planning officers clearly didn’t. 

The Board was advised that any disturbance to residential amenity would be insignificant 
and that the new development would settle reasonably in to its garden, the size of which 
would be consummate with other garden sizes in Gosport. 

Mrs Blackham clarified that the distance from the rear of the proposed new property to the 
boundary was 11 metres which was more than was provided in some new developments in 
the Borough. Examples of this included the new build properties on the former motor 
garage site adjacent to St Mary’s Church and the development at 70 St Nicholas Ave which 
had been designed and built by their architect. 

In addition, the Board was advised that in terms of planning regulations, it was not 
reasonable to object on the basis of loss of light or view and that that the proposed dwelling 
would not be as high or as wide as the leylandii trees which would be removed by as part of 
the development and would therefore increase light, which had been a request of 
neighbours past and present, this was indicative as the Bay Road side of the trees had 
been cut back to the trunk by residents. 



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

4

Mrs Blackham advised the Board that there were no protected species resident in the 
garden and that when planning permission referred to mitigating disturbance to specific 
species and that protocol required an upfront payment of £190. She advised the Board that 
this was well known by officers but had not been flagged up at the pre planning stage and 
was not requested and as a result it was felt that Policy LP44 had been used 
inappropriately with regard to the application and that the suggestion that there ‘could be’ 
protected species was little more than a catch-all phrase that could be used to refer to any 
mature garden, and therefore not worthy of consideration. 

The Board was advised that the proposal met current standards like any other new build 
with regard to recreational disturbance as raised by Policy LP24, however, it was important 
to put any objection in the context of the £126 million fine issued to Southern Water for 
dumping untreated sewerage in the Solent. When the architect asked the Planning Office 
what provision was needed to address this, the answer was that the answer was unknown 
at this point in time. The Board were advised that standards could not be met if it was not 
clear what they were. 

In addition, the Board was advised that good practice was totally compromised by the 
situation with Southern Water and as a result the use of LP42 and LP44 was inappropriate. 

Mrs Blackham concluded by advising that their architect had worked amicably with the 
Borough for decades and had won awards for design and that both the architect and 
themselves felt that the process had been negative and that rather than looking for points to 
support the application, the planning officer had looked for points to refuse it. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised by the Planning Officer that 
whilst design was a subjective matter, the siting and scale of the proposal when considered 
together with the proposed design resulted in a scheme that was inappropriate and out of 
character with the locality. 

The Board was advised of the ongoing issue regarding nitrates and the lack of mitigation 
currently in place for the issue. 

The Board was advised that as there was ecological value to the site, reference to Policy 
LP44 was appropriate and that the ecological information submitted had been reviewed by 
the Council’s Ecologist was not of a standard that meant that no further assessment was 
required. The Board was advised that the applicant had been made aware of the issue 
relating to recreational disturbance at the pre-app stage and that the applicants’ agent was 
fully aware of the issue.  

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the measurements referred 
to in the report that had been questioned by the applicant had been taken from the plans 
submitted by the applicant.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that significant harm would be 
caused by the development as there were a number of issues regarding the amenity of 
neighbouring residents and the loss of privacy due to the removal of the trees and the short 
distances that the proposal was located from boundaries. 

Members felt that the proposal would contribute to a significant loss of habitat and that the 
design was not in keeping with the local area.  



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

5

RESOLVED: That application 19/00258/FULL be refused for the reasons set out in the 
report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration. 

19/00159/FULL - ERECTION OF FRONT/SIDE EXTENSION AND DORMER WINDOW 
(CONSERVATION AREA) (as amended by plans received 04.07.19)
10 Elgar Close Gosport 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to application 19/00159/FULL.

Councillor Hook addressed the Board as ward Councillor. 

He advised the Board that Mr and Mrs Webb opposed the application and that he would be 
addressing the Board with their objection and that they had lived at 11 Elgar Close for 18 
years with the intention of having a peaceful retirement. 

He advised the Board that to his knowledge there was no other application within the close 
with a two storey development, situated directly next to a neighbouring property blocking 
natural sunlight to existing windows. 

He advised that the main objection was based on the adherence to the ‘right for light’ of the 
window in his kitchen and utility room, with the definition of right to light is that acquired 
through a window or opening that has been used for 20 years or more without interruption 

The Board was advised that both of the windows that would that would be affected by this 
development were on the east side of Mr Webb’s property and were the only windows in 
the house that get direct sunlight in the morning.

The Board were advised that Mr Webb believed that the housing development of Elgar 
Close was deliberately staggered to enable this and that both of Mr Webb’s windows would 
be overshadowed which was defined as: the effect of a development or building on the 
amount of natural light presently enjoyed by a neighbouring property, resulting in a shadow 
being cast over that neighbouring property. 

The Board was advised that Mr Webb had provided, on his written objection, 2 photographs 
showing the potential overshadowing, however it was unclear from the planning documents whether 
the rules in planning from the Right to Light Law had been applied.
 
The Board was advised that the 45-degree rule, was assessed on both plan and elevation and that  
extension should not exceed a line taken at 45 degrees from the centre of the nearest ground floor 
window of a habitable room in an adjoining property. 

The Board was advised that Mr Webb felt that on that basis he believed that the planned extension 
breached this rule. 



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

6

The Board was advised that Mr Webb felt that the Elgar Close community was almost entirely 
mature and elderly couples and that all of their houses were of such a size, that the need for extra 
accommodation was not in his opinion, that pressing,  especially when the development would 
cause a material effect on a neighbouring property. 

The Board was advised that Mr Webb had noted from the existing plans of 10 Elgar Close, it had in 
total 10 rooms for accommodation of which 4 were currently configured as bedrooms. He advised 
that this was an unusually low ratio of bedrooms to living accommodation, when compared to most 
houses and that in his opinion it left plenty of scope within the existing foot print of the building, if 
such additional bedrooms are required. 

Councillor Hook concluded by advising that in essence the development would add an extra 
bedroom and living room to number 10 Elgar Close but would fundamentally change the character 
and outlook of two of the most important rooms in the neighbouring property and that the neighbour 
believes the development breeched an important “Right to light” Law/Rule dating back to the 
Ancient Lights Law in the 1800’s.
 
On this basis the Board was advised that Mr Webb strongly requested that the Board did 
not approve the development that would infringe a long established “right to Light” that 11 
Elgar Close had acquired.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the application was not subject to the 
ongoing nitrate issue as it related to the extension of an existing property. 

The Board sought further clarification on the ‘right of light rule’ and was advised that the legislation 
was from 1832 and that it was a private right and therefore not a material planning consideration.

The Board was advised that any impact on amenity as a result of the loss of light was a material 
planning consideration, but that prescriptive right to light was not. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the 45 degree rule was a rule of 
thumb and only provided guidance as to what may or may not be acceptable and did not take into 
account matters such as the orientation of the properties. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the legislation set in 1832 was a 
private matter and challengeable between two parties, the Regulatory Board could only judge effect 
on amenity through loss of light and that planning officers felt there was no significant impact. 

In answer to a subsequent question, the Board was advised that the windows that it was stated 
were affected by the proposal were a secondary window to the kitchen and a utility window, which 
was not considered a habitable room. 

It was proposed and seconded that the application be deferred for a site visit. A vote was taken on 
this proposal and was lost. 

RESOLVED: That planning application 19/00159/FULL be approved subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration.  

31. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

 The Board was advised that a request had recently been received asking for a screening 
opinion regarding whether an Environmental Impact Assessment was required for a 
proposal that was mostly outside of the Gosport boundary, but included access via 
Brookers Lane within the Borough boundary. 



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

7

The proposal was for dwellings and Gosport Borough Council were being requested to 
comment on whether an EIA was required. 

The Board was advised that it was not a planning application and it was necessary that a 
request be made to both Gosport and Fareham Councils as the site straddles the 
administrative boundary and that both Councils have consulted the other on their request.

The request set out the criteria for an EIA and it was requested that an opinion be given as 
to whether the application met the threshold. 

Members were advised that there was no requirement for the request to be published on 
the website as it was not a planning application. 

Members expressed concern that the request was concerning another development off of 
Newgate Lane and wanted to ensure that the Council’s position on objecting to any 
proposals was clear. 

It was reiterated that at this stage the Council were only being asked to give a screening 
opinion and at this stage it would not be appropriate to present any objections or to offer 
any view on the planning merits or otherwise of the proposal. 

Members requested that any response included the highlighting of the applicants reference 
to the Fareham Borough Council Local Plan 2036 and the fact that this document did not 
exist.

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.46 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board Agenda :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 1 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD 

16th October 2019

ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Copies of drawings and accompanying planning applications referred to in this schedule will 
be made available for inspection by Members from 5.00 pm immediately prior to the meeting.  
Unless otherwise advised, these plans will be displayed in the room in which the Regulatory 
Board is to be held.

2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the 
time the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this 
date, these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation.

3. Copies of all representations received from the public will be made available for inspection by 
Members in the same way as drawings will be made available, referred to in Note 1 above.

4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with a 
summary of each recommendation.

Agenda Item 6



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 2 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

INDEX

Item Page 
No

Appl. No. Address Recommendation

01. 03-
10/1

19/00239/OUT Land West Of Control Tower  
Solent Airport  Daedalus 
Drive  Lee-on-the-Solent  
Hampshire  PO13 9FZ

Refuse

02. 11-
13/1

19/00335/FULL 38 Western Way  Gosport  
Hampshire  PO12 2NQ    

Grant Permission
subject to Conditions



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 3 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

ITEM NUMBER: 01.
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00239/OUT
APPLICANT: Mr P. Day  Hangar Homes Ltd
DATE REGISTERED: 24.05.2019

HYBRID APPLICATION COMPRISING: (I) FULL APPLICATION FOR ERECTION OF SIX 
MIXED USE HANGARS (COMPRISING CLASS C3 DWELLING AND CLASS B1(A) 
OFFICE) WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND CYCLE & REFUSE STORAGE 
FACILITIES, AND (II) OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR ERECTION OF MIXED USE 
BUILDING (COMPRISING HERITAGE CENTRE (CLASS D1) AND FLYING CLUB 
PREMISES (SUI GENERIS)) WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT FOR LAYOUT 
(as amended by plans and e-mail received 02.07.19, plans received 16.08.19, 29.08.19 
& 30.09.19, Shadow HRA received 19.08.19 and plans & drainage strategy received 
26.09.2019)
Land West Of Control Tower  Solent Airport  Daedalus Drive  Lee-on-the-Solent  
Hampshire  PO13 9FZ

The Site and the proposal

1. The application site comprises a parcel of land, approximately 0.75 hectares in area, located to 
the west of the control tower at Solent Airport. The site is broadly rectangular in shape and 
measures approximately 150 metres wide and 45 metres deep. 

2. The site straddles the airfield boundary and abuts the administrative boundary of the Borough 
with Fareham along its northern edge. To the south the site would abut the northern edge of the 
section of Daedalus Drive between the roundabout opposite the control tower and its junction with 
Stubbington Lane which is not yet open to through traffic. The site is located within the Solent 
Enterprise Zone and the Daedalus Regeneration Area. The site is close to the recorded locations of 
a number of protected and notable species including Yellow Horned-poppy, Sea Sandwort, Black 
Redstart, Wheatear, Shag, Red Fescue, Sea Radish, Butcher's-broom and Early Meadow-grass. 
The site also forms part of a recognized Solent Wader and Brent Goose Strategy Site.

3. A previous application for the erection of five mixed use hangars (comprising C3 dwelling and 
Class B1(a) office) with associated access, parking and facilities for the storage of cycles and 
refuse was refused in June 2018. The reasons for refusal (which are set out in full in the planning 
history section later in this report) related to: the proposal being prejudicial to the provision of 
employment and the future operation of the airport;  an under-efficient use of the land for residential 
purposes; conflict between future residential occupiers and noise associated with the operation of 
the airport; the provision of a poor standard of amenity for future occupiers in terms of outlook and 
overlooking; and, inadequate access arrangements.

4. This hybrid application seeks full planning permission for the erection of six mixed use hangars 
(comprising C3 dwelling, Class B1(a) office and an aircraft hangar) with associated access, parking 
and facilities for the storage of cycles and refuse. The application also seeks outline planning 
permission for the erection of a mixed use building (comprising a heritage centre (Class D1) and 
flying club premises (sui generis)) with all matters reserved except for layout.

5. The proposed mixed use live-work hangars would be two-storey buildings comprising the hangar, 
a double garage and office to the ground floor with a four bedroom dwelling above. The applicant 
has advised that the double garage (35 sqm) would be associated with the residential element of 
the proposal with the hangar (109.5 sqm) and office (36 sqm) to the ground floor comprising the 
commercial/industrial element. The proposed buildings would have a footprint measuring 12.7 
metres wide by 16.0 metres deep and measure 8.3 metres high. Externally the proposed buildings 
would sit beneath a curved roof finished in zinc cladding above rendered masonry walls and have 
the appearance of contemporary hangars .

6. The application indicates that the commercial element of the proposal would generate 3 full-time 
employees in each of the units. The supporting information indicates that the floorspace of the 
proposed live-work units would be approximately 60% residential and 40% commercial.



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 4 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

7. The proposed mixed use hangars would be set behind a new service road off Daedalus Drive 
with each property having a hardstanding to the front that would provide off-road parking for 4 
vehicles. The submitted details indicate that two of these parking spaces would be for the proposed 
business element of the proposal.

8. The proposed heritage centre and flying club building for which outline permission is sought 
would be located at the eastern end of the site adjacent to the existing viewing area next to the café 
in the control tower building. The submitted plans indicate the proposed heritage centre and flying 
club building as having a footprint measuring 16 metres wide by 20 metres deep. No parking is 
proposed for this element of the proposal with the supporting information seeking to demonstrate 
adequate capacity existing in the existing control tower car park.

9. The main differences between this and the previous application are: an increase in the number of 
mixed use hangars from five to six; a change to the intended use of the hangar from residential to 
commercial; and, the inclusion of the heritage centre and flying club building.

Relevant Planning History

17/00496/FULL - erection of five mixed use hangars (comprising Class C3 dwelling and Class B1(a) 
office) with associated access, parking and cycle & refuse storage facilities - refused 06.06.2018 for 
the following reasons:

1. The proposed predominantly residential development would, by reason of its location straddling 
the airfield boundary, be prejudicial to the future provision of employment in the Daedalus 
Regeneration Area and the Solent Enterprise Zone, and to existing and future operations of the 
airfield. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP5 and LP16 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029 and to the Daedalus SPD.

2. The proposed development would, by reason of its modest density, fail to make an effective and 
efficient use of land contrary to Policy LP24 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

3. The application fails to demonstrate that future residential occupiers would not be subject to 
excessive noise and disturbance associated with the adjacent airfield and that the introduction of a 
noise sensitive use would not prejudice the long-term lawful operations of neighbouring premises. 
The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP10 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029.

4. The proposed residential accommodation would, by reason of its layout and juxtaposition give 
rise to an unacceptable outlook from bedrooms and an unacceptable degree of overlooking that 
would fail to provide an appropriate standard of accommodation to the detriment of the residential 
amenities of future occupiers and contrary to Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029 and the adopted Design SPD.

 5. The proposal fails to demonstrate that safe and convenient access would be provided to serve 
the range of vehicles likely to visit the site. The proposal is therefore potentially prejudicial to the 
safety and convenience of future occupiers of the site and the users of the adjacent road network. 
The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP10 and LP23 of the Local Plan and to the Parking 
Supplementary Planning Document.

Relevant Policies

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029:
LP1  Sustainable Development
LP2  Infrastructure
LP3  Spatial Strategy
LP5  Daedalus
LP10  Design
LP11  Designated Heritage Assets including Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient Monuments 
and Registered Historic Parks & Gardens
LP12  Designated Heritage Assets: Conservation Areas



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 5 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

LP16  Employment Land
LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking
LP24  Housing
LP39  Water Resources
LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats
LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance
LP46  Pollution Control
LP47  Contamination and Unstable Land

Supplementary Planning Documents:
Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 
2014
Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014
Gosport Borough Council Daedalus:  Supplementary Planning Document:  September 2011
Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol April 2018

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019

Particular obligations fall upon the Local Planning Authority in determining any application which 
might affect a listed building or its setting or a Conservation Area. Section 66 of The Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990 (as amended) places a duty on the authority to have 
"special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses". Section 72 of the same act requires 
that the authority pay: "special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 
or appearance of a conservation area".

Consultations
 
 BAA Safeguarding No response received.
 
 Civil Aviation Authority No response received.
 
 LOTS Airfield Object. Proposals would breach Civil 

Aviation Authority requirements in respect of 
clearance from taxiway and would partially 
obstruct visibility from aircraft using airport. 
Also object to suggested use of control tower 
car park to serve proposed heritage centre 
and flying club on basis that no spare 
capacity exists.

 
 NATS Ltd No safeguarding objection.
 
 Natural England More information is required relating to 

proposed nutrient mitigation measures.
 
 Crime Prevention & Design Concern raised about possible security 

weakness in proposal and suggests 
mitigation measures.

 
 Fareham LPA Object. Contrary to Local Plan by placing 

new residential development close to airfield 
in an area that should be used for 
employment generating uses. Proposal fails 
to make efficient use of the site for either 
aviation related employment or housing.

 
 Hampshire Fire And Rescue Service No response received.
 
 HCC Ecology Notes lack of supporting information relating 



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 6 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

to ecology. Recommends completion of a 
Habitats Regulation Assessment.

 
 Local Highway Authority No objection subject to details relating to 

access by service vehicles being provided.
 
 HCC Landscape Planning & Heritage No objection.
 
 Economic Prosperity Concerned that residential led proposal 

would not generate sufficient employment 
opportunities and is not appropriate for this 
specific site that in planning terms is 
allocated for employment uses and benefits 
from an employment asset i.e. airfield 
access.

 
 Environmental Health No objection. Satisfied by content of 

submitted Noise impact Assessment.
 
 Streetscene Waste & Cleansing No objection.

Response to Public Advertisement

6 letters of objection
Issues raised:
- local roads cannot support additional development;
- increased noise and air pollution detrimental to health of local residents;
- proposals should be sited on other side of airfield;
- proposals contrary to Local Plan;
- potential for detrimental effect on airfield operations and license requirements;
- site should be used to benefit airfield;
- proposals would prevent future airport expansion;
- previous reasons for refusal still apply;
- site potentially contaminated;
- potential risk from having residential accommodation above hangars used to store aircraft and 

fuel;
- proposals do not have support of landowner or airport operator.

7 letters of support
Issues raised:
- proposal would be less  noisy or would generate less noise than alternative employment use of 
site;
- if employment is a priority why was IFA2 allowed;
- proposals are far sighted and innovative;
- design in keeping;
- heritage centre would promote history of the airfield;
- proposals would benefit airport and economy of wider area.

1 letter of observation
Issues raised:
- proposal is a novel idea.

Principal Issues

1. Whilst it is clear that the land owner does not support the proposals, this in its own right is not a 
material planning consideration and could not be a reason for refusal. The requirements of the 
Building Regulations, Civil Aviation Authority, Border Force and any other regulatory authorities fall 
outside of the scope of the planning system and would need to be addressed independently of any 
planning application. Matters associated with developments elsewhere on the airfield within the 



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 7 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

administrative area of Fareham Borough Council are not relevant to the consideration of this 
planning application.

2. The main issues to be considered in the determination of this application are, therefore, whether 
the proposals are acceptable in principle, whether the proposals would prejudice the future of the 
airfield and Enterprise Zone and whether the proposals are acceptable in design, amenity, 
highways and ecological terms. Particular regard should be had to the reasons for the refusal of the 
previous application. Other issues to consider relate to the impact on the proposals on heritage 
assets and the potential for land contamination.

3. The site is located within the Daedalus Regeneration Area where Policy LP5 of the Local Plan 
promotes a mix of uses including 75,000m2 of employment floorspace containing premises suited 
for advanced manufacturing and technology clusters including aviation and aerospace uses and the 
provision of 350 dwellings. Paragraph 7.80 of the supporting text to Policy LP5 notes that an 
element of residential development could increase activity on the site and assist with the blending of 
the site into neighbouring residential areas. This puts emphasis upon locating the proposed 
residential element of the scheme adjacent to the existing housing at the edge of the site and away 
from the airfield.

4. The Daedalus Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) provides further detail in relation to the 
mix of uses across the Regeneration Area. Although this part of the regeneration area is not 
allocated for a specific use in the SPD, the site falls within a character area (no. 8) where the 
emphasis is to provide a mix of employment premises to suit a range of business needs with uses 
in this character area being employment-based with opportunities for aviation related business. 
Policy LP16 states that "employment assets (such as the waterfront access, airfield access or 
specialist on-site facilities) will be protected". The supporting text to Policy LP16 recognises the 
importance of protecting employment assets that have the potential to attract new employment 
opportunities and identifies access to the runways at Daedalus as being a potential employment 
asset. The supporting text continues by stressing the importance of the option to use such assets 
for employment opportunities being fully explored before being released for other uses. No 
evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that any assessment of the potential use of the 
application site for employment purposes has been undertaken.

5. The priority for this part of the regeneration area is focused on employment-generating uses 
maximising the benefits of the airfield as an asset. Whilst the proposal has the potential to provide 
some small scale employment, no evidence has been provided with the application to justify the 
level of employment suggested (3 FTE per live-work unit). The applicant has stated that the live-
work units could assist in helping to deliver the aspirations of the Council on the Regeneration area 
by attracting aviation-related businesses to the area. Whilst this may be the case, there have been 
a number of successful new aviation-related businesses locating to the Daedalus site most notably 
within Fareham Borough. This would suggest that the presence of the airfield alone is enough to 
attract aviation related business. The proposed use would take valuable land allocated for 
employment-generating uses which otherwise could make use of the site's proximity to the airfield 
to provide significant levels of specialist employment. The residential development currently being 
built to the south of the site includes land identified in the SPD for employment uses. The loss of 
this land for employment purposes means it is all the more important that the job creation potential 
of the remaining land allocated for employment purposes is maximised.

6. The application sets out that the accommodation that would be provided within the proposed live 
work hangars would be approximately 60% residential and 40% employment related. The 
supporting text to Policy LP16 (at paragraph 9.25) makes it clear that live/work 'units will be 
considered primarily as residential units when determining planning applications'. In the absence of 
evidence to support the level of employment that would be created, the proposal, the mixed use 
nature of the proposal can be considered as being primarily residential in nature. The proposed 
development would be at a density of approximately 8 dwellings per hectare, which would be 
significantly less than the minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare set out in Policy LP24. The 
application attempts to justify this on the basis of the specialist nature of the units and the need to 
incorporate a hangar preventing a higher density development being provided. This argument is 
considered to have sufficient merit to be considered as an exception to Policy LP24 in this instance, 
such that the previous reason for refusal relating to density has been addressed and overcome.



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 8 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

7. Having regard to the foregoing, the proposal would fail to provide a level of employment that 
would justify the use of employment land adjacent to the airfield to provide residential led live-work 
units. Accordingly the principle of the element of the proposal for which full planning permission is 
sought is not acceptable in this location and is contrary to Policies LP5 and LP16 of the Local Plan 
and would not meet the aims and objectives of the Daedalus SPD. The previous reason for refusal 
relating to failure to provide adequate employment opportunities and the potential impact on the 
airport has not been fully addressed or overcome.

8. The application includes the provision of a heritage hangar and flying club premises, albeit with 
the details of this element being reserved for future consideration. It is considered that such a 
facility could be considered as complementary to the function of the airport and as such would not 
conflict with Policies LP5 and LP16 of the Local Plan.

9. In accordance with Policy LP15, the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) and airfield operator have 
been consulted. Whilst no response has been received from the CAA, the airfield operator has 
raised objections on a number of grounds relating to the potential impact of the proposal on the 
existing and future operation of the airfield. The Daedalus SPD sets out that "'safeguarding' 
responsibilities rests in all cases with the relevant aerodrome operator". Given the importance of the 
airfield and its integral contribution to the Solent Enterprise Zone, any potential risk to its continued 
functionality must be given substantial weight in the consideration of this application. Whilst some of 
the issues raised fall outside the scope of the planning system, it appears clear that the proposal 
has the potential to adversely affect the operation of the airfield. In the absence of any certainty that 
the proposal would not prejudice the future of the airfield, and in the context of its contribution to the 
Enterprise Zone, the application cannot be supported.

10. In design terms the proposed buildings for which permission is sought are considered 
acceptable with their contemporary 'hangar'-like appearance being considered appropriate in this 
location. In this respect the proposals are considered acceptable in design terms and would accord 
with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan in this regard.

11. The site is located over 300 metres from the edge of the Daedalus Conservation Area and 
almost 400 metres from the nearest Listed Building (former Dining Rooms and Cookhouse). Given 
this degree of spatial separation and the presence of substantial hangar buildings in between, it is 
considered that the proposals would not harm the setting of either the Conservation Area or the 
Listed Buildings. The proposals are therefore in accordance with Policies LP11 and LP12 of the 
Local Plan.

12. The proposals would be located adjacent to the boundary of the airfield, and within 200 metres 
of the main runway. As such future occupiers would undoubtedly be subject to noise and 
disturbance from airport operations. This would particularly be the case in respect of the balconies 
which would provide the only external amenity areas for future residential occupiers. This 
application is accompanied by a Noise Impact Assessment that sets out measures that could be 
incorporated into the development to mitigate the impact of noise from airport operations on the 
living conditions for future residential occupiers. These measures include locating bedrooms away 
from likely noise sources, using mechanical ventilation to ensure the dwellings can be ventilated 
without having to open the windows, and the installation of insulation with high acoustic values to 
reduce noise break in. The proposed noise mitigation measures, when weighed in the context of the 
live-work nature of the proposal, are considered to address and overcome the previous reason for 
refusal relating to noise impacts on future residential occupiers.

13. The layout of the proposed residential accommodation has two bedrooms being located 
centrally within the building that would take their sole light and outlook from windows in the flank 
elevation. Due to the arrangement of the proposed properties in a row, these windows would (in five 
out of the six) look onto the flank of the adjacent property to the east which would contain 
secondary windows serving a bedroom and the main living space. The spacing between the 
buildings would be 4.5 metres which is considered to be so close as to fail to provide an appropriate 
outlook or separation in privacy terms to the detriment of the residential amenities of future 
occupiers. Whilst the specialised nature of the proposal is noted, his is not considered to justify the 
provision of such a substandard living environment for future occupiers. This element of the 
proposal remains unacceptable such that the previous reason for refusal relating to this issue has 



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 9 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

not been addressed or overcome. The current proposal remains unacceptable in amenity terms and 
is contrary to Policy LP10 of the Local Plan and the Design SPD.

14. The proposed access and egress arrangements from Daedalus Drive are considered 
acceptable as the applicant has demonstrated that vehicles up to 12 metres in length can enter and 
leave the site in a safe manner. In this regard the proposal has addressed and overcome the 
previous reason for refusal relating to access and complies with Policy LP23 of the Local Plan.

15. The proposal would include the provision of a level of car parking in accordance with the 
requirements of the Parking SPD to serve the live-work units. If the proposal were considered 
acceptable in other respects, a suitably worded planning condition could be imposed to secure the 
provision and retention of these car parking spaces. In this regard the proposal complies with Policy 
LP23 of the Local Plan and to the Parking SPD.

16. The proposed heritage centre and flying club element of the proposal would undoubtedly 
generate demand for parking. In recognition of this the application includes an assessment of 
capacity in the car park adjacent to the site that serves the control tower. Whilst the airport operator 
has questioned the accuracy of the car parking surveys carried out for the applicant, they have 
provided no evidence to support their position. Visits by Officers have observed that, at times of 
peak demand, the existing control tower car park is being used to capacity. Notwithstanding the 
information presented in support of this application, the proposal does not demonstrate that 
sufficient capacity exists within the control tower car park to serve the likely demand from the 
heritage centre and flying club for which Outline permission is sought. In this regard the proposal 
does not comply with Policy LP23 of the Local Plan or to the Parking SPD.

17. The Highway Authority has requested a financial contribution towards the provision of Traffic 
Regulation Orders in the vicinity of the site to restrict on-road parking around junctions to ensure 
they remain clear of obstruction. Given the proposals failure to demonstrate adequate parking exists 
to serve the to serve the likely demand associated with the use of the heritage centre and flying 
club, it is considered that incidences of overspill parking in nearby roads would be likely. Such on-
street parking would be prejudicial to the safety and convenience of users of the adjacent roads and 
could justify the use of Traffic Regulation Orders to restrict on-road parking around junctions to 
ensure they remain clear of obstruction. Financial contributions towards the provision of Traffic 
Regulation Orders are normally secured though a S106 legal agreement that would be signed by all 
parties with an ownership interest in the site. In this instance, given that the land owner has 
objected to the proposal, it is consider unlikely that a legal agreement could be completed to secure 
the payment of a financial contribution towards the provision of Traffic Regulation Order.

18. Concerns have been raised about the security of the airfield being potentially prejudiced by the 
proposals. It is considered that this issue could be dealt with by the imposition of suitably worded 
planning conditions if the proposal were otherwise considered acceptable. Similarly the provision of 
facilities for the storage and collection of waste, could be secured by the imposition of a suitably 
worded planning condition if the proposal were otherwise considered acceptable.

19. The site is located in an area known to be used by protected species (Brent Geese), however 
given the proximity of the site to the airfield it is unlikely that birds would use this area. The site is 
within 50 metres of areas that have been identified as providing habitats for a number of protected 
species. Whilst these are of significant importance, none have been identified on the application 
site. Having regard to the location and nature of the site and the size of the development proposed, 
the proposal will not have a detrimental impact on these important habitats and in this respect would 
comply with Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Local Plan.

20. The proposal will introduce additional dwellings which are likely to result in increased 
recreational activity on the coast and a consequential impact on the protected species for which the 
Portsmouth Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and the Chichester and 
Langstone Harbours SPA are designated. To address this impact, a contribution towards 
appropriate mitigation, in accordance with the Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol, is 
required. The applicant has provided mitigation in accordance with the Protocol and as such the 
proposal would not conflict with Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Local Plan in this regard.



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 10 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

21. Natural England have raised concerns that new dwellings are causing increased levels of 
nitrogen and other nitrate input to the water environment in the Solent with evidence that these 
nutrients are causing eutrophication at European and internationally designated habitat sites and 
that additional mitigation measures will be required to offset any increases in nitrogen discharges 
that would result from the proposals. Natural England advises that proposals for new residential 
development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to these sites. The applicant has 
submitted a shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment in an attempt to address this issue. 
However, the submitted information does not demonstrate the development would be nitrogen 
neutral or that suitable mitigation could be provided to offset any increased nutrient output 
associated with the use of the proposed live-work units. As a result the Council is unable to 
conclude that the proposals would avoid adverse effects on the integrity of Portsmouth Harbour and 
Southampton Water Special Protection Areas (SPAs). The proposals must therefore be considered 
as conflicting with the with Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and being 
contrary to Policy LP42 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

22. Whilst the site lies close to an area where archaeological traces relating to prehistoric activity 
have been found, investigations have concluded that this area has been extensively disturbed by 
modern development, mainly connected with the airfield. As such it is considered unlikely that 
ground works associated with any construction activity would expose interpretable archaeological 
features. As such the proposal would not conflict with Policy LP13 of the Local Plan.

23. Given the historic use of the site for military purposes there is potential for the site to be affected 
by both land contamination and unexploded ordnance. If the proposal were considered acceptable 
in other respects, suitably worded planning conditions could be imposed to safeguard and deal with 
these issues in accordance with Policy LP47 of the Local Plan.

Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications

RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse

For the following reasons:-

1.  The proposal fails to demonstrate that it would provide a level of employment that would justify 
the introduction of live/work units in this location adjacent to the airfield boundary, and that would 
not be prejudicial to the future provision of employment in the Daedalus Regeneration Area and the 
Solent Enterprise Zone. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP5 and LP16 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and to the Daedalus SPD.

2.  The proposal fails to demonstrate that it would not be prejudicial to existing and future operations 
of the airfield. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy LP16 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029 and to the Daedalus SPD.

3.  The proposed residential accommodation would, by reason of its layout and juxtaposition give 
rise to an unacceptable outlook from bedrooms and an unacceptable degree of overlooking that 
would fail to provide an appropriate standard of accommodation to the detriment of the residential 
amenities of future occupiers contrary to Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 
and the adopted Design SPD.

4.  The proposal fails to demonstrate that adequate parking exists to serve the likely demand 
associated with the use of the heritage centre and flying club. The proposal is therefore contrary to 
Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and to the Parking SPD.

5.  The proposal fails to demonstrate the development would be nitrogen neutral and/or would 
provide mitigation to off-set any increased nutrient discharge associated with the proposal and 
would therefore cause unacceptable harm to European and Internationally designated habitat sites 
which would be detrimental to the protected and other species for which these areas are 
designated. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029, the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation 
of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017.



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 11 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

ITEM NUMBER: 02.
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00335/FULL
APPLICANT: Mr S Slowther  
DATE REGISTERED: 29.07.2019

ERECTION OF TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION, SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION, 
SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, REAR BALCONY AND FRONT CANOPY PORCH
38 Western Way  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2NQ    

The Site and the proposal

1. The application site is a corner plot located on the southern side of Western Way and the western 
side of Kennedy Crescent. The property is a detached two storey dwellinghouse constructed of red 
brick, render, timber and uPVC windows and doors under a pitched, tiled roof. At the front of the 
property is a grassed and gravelled area which is partially enclosed by hedging and a small wall. At 
the east of the property is a detached outbuilding. At the rear is a large garden which is 
approximately 21m deep. The property to the west, number 36 Western Way, is approximately 9m 
away from the application property. The property to the south, number 1 Sword Close, is 
approximately 25m away from the application property. The site is bounded by 1.8m high fencing 
along the eastern side. The properties in the immediate area are of varying design and sizes, many 
of which have had alterations to them. 

2. The proposal is for the erection of a two storey side extension, single storey side extension, 
single storey rear extension, rear balcony and front canopy porch. The outbuilding situated at the 
east of the property is to be demolished. The two storey side extension would be situated in its 
place on the eastern side of the property. It would be 5m deep, 6.7m wide, would have an eaves 
height of 4m and a ridge height of 7.4m with a pitched roof. There would be a garage door and 
window on the ground floor front elevation and 2 pitched roof dormers on the first floor front 
elevation. The single storey side extension would be adjoining the two storey and would be 3.2m 
deep, 3.4m wide, have an eaves height of 3.2m and a ridge height of 6.1m with a pitched roof. 
There would be a garage door on the front elevation, a roof light on the rear elevation and a door in 
the side elevation. The single storey rear extension would be 6.1m deep, 6.9m wide, have a flat roof 
with a height of 3m and have 2 roof lanterns at a height of 3.6m. There would be bi-fold doors on 
the rear elevation and 2 windows on the eastern side elevation. The balcony would be situated at 
the rear of the existing property. It would be 2.2m deep, 4.5m wide and have a height of 3.8m. It 
would be constructed out of timber. The front porch would be 1.3m deep, 2.4m wide, have an eaves 
height of 2.1m and a ridge height of 3.4m. There would be a door and 2 windows on the front 
elevation. It is also proposed to add a small obscure glazed window on the first floor western 
elevation for an en-suite. The proposal is would be finished in matching materials.

Relevant Planning History

Nil

Relevant Policies

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029:
LP10  Design

Supplementary Planning Documents:
Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 
2014

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 12 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

Consultations
 
 Nil

Response to Public Advertisement

1 letter of objection
Issues raised:-
- construction dust going to cause health problems
- method statement should be required

Principal Issues

1. Although dust arising from construction can be a nuisance to surrounding occupiers, it is not 
considered reasonable to require a Method Statement or similar relating to dust suppression 
measures for building works associated with the extension of a dwelling. Any significant dust 
problems, if they were to arise, could be dealt with under Environmental Health legislation. 
Therefore, the main issues for consideration are the appropriateness of the design of the proposal, 
and its impact on the appearance of the locality and the amenities of the occupiers of adjacent 
properties. 

2. Although the additions to the property are substantial, the overall scale and detailing of the 
proposed extensions, balcony and porch are appropriate and in keeping with the design of the 
application property and surrounding buildings. The eastern side extensions would be set back from 
the site boundary by 2.5m and as such would not adversely impact upon the open character and 
appearance of the area along Kennedy Crescent and sufficient garden space would be retained on 
the site. The materials to be used would match those on the existing property and this will be 
controlled by a condition, and so this would therefore comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

3. The proposal would contain new windows and doors on front, side and rear elevations. The 
proposed rear extension and balcony would be situated 22m away from the shared boundary with 
number 1 Sword Close and 13m away from 36 Western Way. A number of windows are on the 
northern elevation of 1 Sword Close, however as it is situated beyond a number of trees and 
vegetation, along with a boundary fence, the proposal is not considered to harm the amenity of the 
occupants of adjacent properties and so complies with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029.

Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications

RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission

Subject to the following condition(s):-

1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning with 
the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended).

2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans:
002 rev C, 003 rev A, 004 rev A, 005 rev C
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.



Regulatory Board :  16th October 2019

DC-AGENDA-EN-08.10.19 Page 13 of 13 DC/UNI-form Template

3.  The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture those on the existing dwelling 
unless otherwise agreed, in writing, with the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 28 August 2019
	6 Report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration

